

Review of the Relationships Education, Relationships and Sex Education (RSE) and Health Education statutory guidance

Government consultation

Launch date: 16 May 2024 Respond by: 11 July 2024

Contents

Intraduction / Oceanieur	4
Introduction / Overview	4
Who this is for	4
Issue date	5
Enquiries	5
Additional copies	5
The response	5
Respond online	5
Deadline	6
Consultation themes and questions	7
Privacy and Confidentiality	7
Privacy Notice	7
Confidentiality Notice	7
About you	7
Introductory Questions	9
Review timetable	10
Structure of the guidance	10
Schools' relationships and sex education policies	10
Openness with parents	11
Age limits on teaching certain subjects	12
Flexibility for age limits	15
Sexual orientation	15
Addressing prejudice, harassment and sexual violence	17
Primary sex education	18
Secondary topics: Online and Media, Respectful Relationships, including and Being Safe	g friendships, 18
Health and wellbeing	22
Health and Wellbeing	23
Suicide prevention	24
Additional topics	25
General comments	26

Introduction / Overview

This consultation seeks feedback on proposed revisions to the Relationships Education, Relationships and Sex Education (RSE) and Health Education statutory guidance 2019.

This review is an opportunity to ensure that the guidance:

- covers all essential curriculum content;
- supports high quality teaching which is inclusive and meets the needs of pupils;
- supports schools to develop an open and positive relationship with parents, complementing the role of parents as the primary educators of their children.

Rationale and guiding principles

The revised guidance has been informed by insights from a range of stakeholders, including an independent expert panel appointed by the Secretary of State to advise on what it is appropriate to teach in relationships and sex education and health education, and at what age, to ensure all content is factual and age appropriate. Over 50 organisations, including teaching unions, faith groups, parent groups, academics and RSHE providers, have contributed their expertise to this review and we have drawn on findings from our national evaluation of RSHE teaching in schools, which will be published in 2024.

Our guiding principles in carrying out this review remain the same as for the 2019 guidance:

- The role of parents in the development of their children's understanding about these subjects is vital. Parents are the first teachers of their children.
- All of the subject content must be age and developmentally appropriate.
- RSHE must be taught sensitively and inclusively, with respect for the backgrounds and beliefs of pupils and parents.
- Schools must have flexibility to shape their curriculum according to the needs of their pupils and communities.
- RSHE should prepare young people for the complexities of the world they are growing up in, and give them the tools to stay happy, safe, and healthy, and to act respectfully towards others and keep others safe.

Please read the draft guidance before completing the questions below. You do not have to answer all questions.

Who this is for

- Headteachers
- Teachers and other school staff
- School governors

- Academy trusts and independent school proprietors
- Church Dioceses and other religious bodies who run schools
- Other educational professionals
- Voluntary and community organisations
- Any other interested organisations and individuals
- Parents and carers
- Children and young people

Issue date

The consultation was issued on 16th May 2024.

Enquiries

If your enquiry is related to the policy content of the consultation you can contact the team by email: rsheguidance.consultation@education.gov.uk

If your enquiry is related to the DfE e-consultation website or the consultation process in general, you can contact the DfE Ministerial and Public Communications Division by email: <u>Consultations.Coordinator@education.gov.uk</u> or by telephone: 0370 000 2288 or via the <u>DfE Contact us page</u>.

Additional copies

Additional copies are available electronically and can be downloaded from <u>GOV.UK DfE</u> <u>consultations</u>.

The response

The aim is for the results of the consultation and the department's response to be <u>published on GOV.UK</u> in Autumn 2024.

Respond online

To help us analyse the responses please use the online system wherever possible. Visit DfE consultations on GOV.UK to submit your response.

Other ways to respond

If for exceptional reasons, you are unable to use the online system, for example because you use specialist accessibility software that is not compatible with the system, you may request and complete a word document version of the form.

By email

rsheguidance.consultation@education.gov.uk

By post

Consultation Response RSHE team Department for Education Life Skills Division Sanctuary Buildings Great Smith Street London SW1P 3BT

Deadline

The consultation closes on 11th July 2024.

Consultation themes and questions

Privacy and Confidentiality

Privacy Notice

The personal data (name and address and any other identifying material) that you provide in response to this consultation is processed by the Department for Education as a data controller in accordance with the UK GDPR and Data Protection Act 2018, and your personal information will only be used for the purposes of this consultation. The Department for Education relies upon the lawful basis of article 6 (1) (e) of the UK GDPR, which allows us to process personal data when this is necessary for conducting consultations as part of our function. We may share information we hold about you with certain organisations, where the law allows it or we have a legal obligation to do so.

There may be some circumstances where we'll need to share information about you with others without your consent. For example, this might be to prevent or detect a crime, or to produce anonymised statistics for research purposes. In all cases, we'll comply with the Data Protection Act 2018.

The personal information will be retained for a period of 10 years following the closure of the consultation period, after which it will be securely destroyed. You can read more about what the Department for Education does when we ask for and hold your personal information in our personal information charter, which can be found here: Personal information charter - Department for Education - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

Confidentiality Notice

Information provided in response to consultations, including personal information, may be subject to publication or disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, the Data Protection Act 2018 or the Environmental Information Regulations 2004. If you want all, or any part, of a response to be treated as confidential, please explain why you consider it to be confidential. If a request for disclosure of the information you have provided is received, your explanation about why you consider it confidential will be taken into account, but no assurance can be given that confidentiality can be maintained. An automatic confidentiality disclaimer generated by your IT system will not, of itself, be regarded as binding on the Department.

About you

Confidentiality Questions

This section is all about you / your organisation and where you are from.

1. Are you responding to this consultation as an:

[] Organisation, for example, a charity, school/college or think tank (tick box) Or

[] Individual (tick box)

2. If you are responding as part of an organisation, would you prefer your response was kept confidential?

[] Yes (tick box) [] No (tick box) [] N/A (tick box)

3. If you are responding as an individual, are you responding as (please select all that apply):

- [] A parent or carer
- [] A teacher
- [] A student
- [] A school or college leader
- [] A school or college governor
- [] A designated safeguarding lead
- [] A student support or pastoral care team member
- [] A medical professional
- [] N/A
- [] Other, please specify

4. If you are responding to this consultation as an organisation, are you responding as:

- [] A school
- [] A college
- [] An academy trust
- [] A local authority
- [] A union
- [] A charity
- [] N/A
- [] Other, please specify

5. Are you responding to the consultation with an interest in:

Please tick all that apply

- [] Primary schools
- [] Secondary schools

[] Faith schools
[] Alternative provision/special schools
[] School sixth forms
[] FE college
[] Sixth form college
[] Designated institutions

6. If you want all, or any part, of your response to be treated confidentially in response to a freedom of information request, please explain why you consider it to be confidential.

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

Introductory Questions

This section is all about you.

Age

7. If you are responding as an individual, are you:

- [] Over 18
- [] Under 18

8. What is your sex?

- [] Female
- [] Male

9. Is the gender you identify with the same as your sex registered at birth?

- []Yes
- [] No
- [] Prefer not to say or not applicable

10. Where are you based?

- [] England
- [] Wales
- [] Scotland
- [] Northern Ireland
- [] Other (please specify)

Review timetable

Previous guidance included a commitment to review the content of the RSHE statutory guidance every three years. There is a risk that a rigid timetable could undermine stability for teachers, but we are still committed to monitoring the curriculum to ensure it remains fit for purpose. We have, therefore, revised the commitment to "This guidance will be kept under review?"

11. Do you agree that we move away from a rigid commitment to review the guidance every three years?

[]Yes

[] No.

Structure of the guidance

We have heard feedback that many teachers find the guidance is too long and confusing. We have restructured the guidance to simplify the content and remove repetition.

12. Do you agree that the changes to length and style of the guide make the guidance easier to understand and follow?

[] Yes [] No

Schools' relationships and sex education policies

All primary schools are required to have a policy for relationships education, and secondary schools are required to have a policy for relationships and sex education. We have made some changes to the guidance on schools' policies for relationships and sex education, including asking schools:

- to differentiate between relationships and sex education (if they teach sex education) so that parents are clear about the content they can request withdrawal from.
- to explain how they will handle questions from pupils in relation to content that is
 restricted to older children, that relates to topics in primary sex education that
 the school doesn't cover, or relates to sex education from which the pupil has
 been withdrawn.
- to explain how parents can view curriculum materials.

13. Do you agree that these changes will do enough to ensure that schools are transparent with parents and that parents have sufficient control regarding what their child is learning?

- []Yes
- [] No

14. If you would like to explain your answer, please do so here.

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

Openness with parents

Parents are the first teachers of their children. It is vital that they know what their children are being taught and are reassured that the resources used are factual and appropriate. The Secretary of State has already written to schools setting out her expectations about how schools share RSHE materials with parents and the revised guidance is clear that:

- There is a strong public interest in parents being able to see all materials used to teach RSHE, if they would like to, and schools should not agree to contractual restrictions which prevent this.
- Contractual clauses which seek to prevent schools sharing resources with parents at all are void, given the public interest in parents being able to see all RSHE material.
- Schools should comply with any applicable copyright law when sharing materials with parents, and this may be through a parent portal or a presentation, but might include parents being given copies of material to take home.

15. Do you agree with our proposed approach to increased transparency on RSHE material?

[]Yes

[]No

16. If you would like to offer any comments to explain your answer, please do so here.

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

Age limits on teaching certain subjects

The age limits were developed taking into account the advice from the independent panel, and seek to ensure that, as content is presented to prepare young people to stay safe and keep others safe, children are not introduced too early to concepts that they may not have the maturity to grasp, or which may be distressing. Age limits are focused on topics which, even when presented in a careful and well-intentioned way, may inadvertently give the message to young people that they could or should be engaging in or exploring adult activities rather than enjoying childhood.

The panel focused on five areas where they felt pupils, parents and teachers would most benefit from additional clarity: the changing adolescent body, sexual harassment and sexual violence, sexual relationships and sexual health, pornography and sexual orientation. The panel considered a range of evidence to inform their advice, including conversations with parents and faith groups.

The independent panel made a series of helpful recommendations, which have been central to our considerations. As well as making recommendations on age limits, the panel recommended that schools take a mastery approach to teaching topics within RSHE, building knowledge sequentially, and offered some advice on how topics might be sequenced. For example, if you consider the topic of being safe, children start to learn about privacy and boundaries in primary school, and build on this throughout their education, but they are not taught about the explicit details of sexual violence until they are much older.

The tables in the guidance reflect this approach.

The age limits we are consulting on are summarised below for reference, but you have the opportunity to comment on them under each relevant topic in this document. They are also marked clearly in the curriculum tables in the draft guidance.

Primary:

Торіс	Age limit
The risks relating to online gaming, video game monetisation, scams, fraud and other financial harms, and that gaming can become addictive. Why social media, some apps, computer games and online gaming, including gambling sites, are age restricted.	Not before year 3
Growth, change and the changing adolescent body. This topic should include the human lifecycle. Puberty should be mentioned as a stage in this process, including the key facts about the menstrual cycle, including physical and emotional changes.	Not before year 4
Sex education topics taught in primary, which should be in line with what pupils learn about conception and birth as part of the national curriculum for science.	Not before year 5

Secondary:

Торіс	Age limit
What constitutes harmful sexual behaviour, including sexual harassment and the concepts and laws relating to it, including revenge porn, upskirting and taking intimate sexual photos without consent, public sexual harassment, and unsolicited sexual language / attention / touching.	Not before year 7
The concepts and laws relating to sexual exploitation and abuse, grooming, stalking, and forced marriage.	
Circulating images and information and how to safely report to trusted adults the non-consensual creation or distribution of an intimate image.	
The risks of inappropriate online content, including pornographic content, without discussing the details of sexual acts.	
Direct references to suicide (as part of teaching about health and wellbeing).	Not before year 8
Discussing the details of sexually explicit materials, in the context of learning about the risks of inappropriate online content, including pornographic content.	Not before year 9
Discussing the explicit details of violent abuse, including the detail of topics such as rape, sexual assault, female genital mutilation (FGM), virginity testing and hymenoplasty	
Discussing the explicit details of violent abuse when discussing the concepts and laws relating to domestic abuse including coercive control, emotional, sexual, economic or physical abuse, and violent or threatening behaviour.	
Explicit discussion of the details of sexual acts, in the context of teaching about intimate and sexual relationships, including in relation to contraception and STIs.	Not before year 9

Please comment on these age limits in the relevant sections below.

Flexibility for age limits

While setting out age restrictions on when sensitive topics should be taught, we have also allowed schools a degree of flexibility to allow schools to respond promptly to issues which pose an imminent safeguarding risk to their pupils. This means that in certain circumstances, schools may decide to teach age-limited topics earlier, provided it is necessary to do so in order to safeguard pupils and provided that teaching is limited to the essential facts, without going into unnecessary details. For example, if a primary school becomes aware that pupils are sharing pornographic materials, the guidance allows schools to address this appropriately with younger pupils without going into details of the sexual acts viewed. Note this question is not about the age limits themselves.

17. Do you think this flexibility will help to ensure that pupils are adequately safeguarded?

[]Yes

[] No

18. Do you think this flexibility is warranted?

[] Yes

[] No

19. If you would like to explain your answer to questions 17 or 18, please do so here

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

Sexual orientation

We have streamlined the section on teaching Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender topics, so that relevant content is in one place. This includes additional content on gender reassignment and gender identity, which is discussed in the section below. We have also clarified that primary schools have discretion over whether to discuss sexual orientation or families with same-sex parents.

20. Do you agree with changes to the lesbian, gay and bisexual content in the LGBT section (note that the next section provides an opportunity to comment on text about gender identity and gender reassignment)?

- []Yes
- [] No

21. If you have any comments to explain your answer, please do so here.

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

Gender reassignment

The new guidance states that pupils should know the world around them, and understand the law on equality and the protected characteristics, including gender reassignment. However, the guidance is clear that schools should not teach pupils about the contested concept of gender identity. Along with other factors, discussing such theories with pupils could prompt some pupils to start to question their gender. The new content is informed by the outcome of the Cass Review and the principles that underpin the draft guidance for schools and colleges on gender questioning pupils (gender questioning guidance), both of which advocate for a cautious approach. We consulted on the draft gender questioning guidance separately, from 19 December to 12 March, and are currently considering the outcomes, so the content of that guidance is not within the scope of this consultation.

The new guidance states that:

- Schools should teach about the protected characteristics, including gender reassignment.
- Schools should be clear that an individual must be over 18 before they can legally reassign their gender. This means that a child's legal sex will always be the same as their biological sex and that, at school, boys cannot be legally classified as girls or vice versa.
- Schools should not teach about the concept of "gender identity" which is a highly contested and complex concept.
- If asked about the topic of gender identity, schools should teach the facts about biological sex and not use any materials that present contested views as fact, including the view that gender is a spectrum.
- Schools should not use materials that use cartoons or diagrams that oversimplify this complex concept or that could be interpreted as aimed at younger children.
- Schools should consult parents on the content of external resources on this topic in advance and make all materials available to them on request.

22. Do you agree with the proposed changes related to gender identity and gender reassignment in the guidance?

- []Yes
- [] No

23. If you have any comments to explain your answer, please do so here:

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

Addressing prejudice, harassment and sexual violence

We have included a new section in the guidance specifically on addressing prejudice, harassment and sexual violence and harmful sexual behaviours, in light of evidence of the prevalence of sexual harassment in some schools. The section includes new content on addressing the harmful behaviours that pupils may be exposed to, including online, which may normalise harmful or violent sexual behaviours - for example, by giving pupils the opportunity to identify positive male role models. This new section also highlights the role of staff in avoiding language that might perpetuate harmful stereotypes or suggest that victims are to blame for abusive behaviour.

We have also included new content relating to sexual harassment and sexual violence in the curriculum, including by adding fixated and obsessive behaviours, such as stalking, to the secondary Respectful Relationships topic, and offering clearer guidance on teaching about image-based sexual abuse in the secondary Online and Media topic.

The secondary Being Safe topic has been strengthened to include more of the detail on communicating and recognising consent, to be clear that this is a key plank in pupils' learning to keep others safe. The Being Safe topic also now lists specific forms of sexual harassment that may otherwise be neglected, including revenge porn, upskirting, public sexual harassment, and unsolicited sexual language / attention / touching.

24. Do you agree that the revised content on addressing prejudice, harassment and sexual violence is a helpful response to evidence of the prevalence of sexual abuse in schools?

[]Yes [] No

25. If you would like to explain your answer, please do so here.

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

Primary sex education

The new guidance is clear that where primary schools choose to teach sex education, its purpose is not to prepare pupils for sexual activity in later life, but to focus on giving pupils the information they need to understand human reproduction and for their own safety. Primary schools should take account of the age restrictions in the secondary RSHE curriculum tables.

The new guidance continues to recommend that primary schools have a sex education programme, but restricts this to no earlier than years 5 or 6, and is clear that if a primary school teaches sex education, it should draw on the knowledge pupils are developing about the human life cycle, as set out in the national curriculum for science.

26. Do you agree with the restriction on teaching sex education only in years 5 or 6?

[]Yes []No

27. If you would like to make any comments to explain your answer, please do so here. It would be helpful if you could share your own views on appropriate age limits for this topic, for example if you think they are too low or too high.

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

Secondary topics: Online and Media, Respectful Relationships, including friendships, and Being Safe

We have placed an age limit on the following content in the secondary Respectful Relationships, including Friendships topic: What constitutes harmful sexual behaviour and why, and that such behaviour is unacceptable, emphasising that it is never the fault of the person experiencing it. **This should not be taught before year 7.**

28 Do you agree with this age limit?

• []Yes

• []No

We have placed an age limit on the following content in the secondary Respectful Relationships, including Friendships topic: That some types of behaviour, including within relationships, are criminal, including violent behaviour and emotional abuse, such as controlling or coercive behaviour. Schools should not, however, teach about the details of violent abuse before Y9 as it is important that pupils are not introduced to distressing concepts when they are too young to understand them.

29. Do you agree with this age limit?

- []Yes
- []No

We have placed an age limit on the following content in the secondary Online and Media topic: About circulating images and information and how to safely report to trusted adults the non-consensual creation or distribution of an intimate image. Pupils should understand that making, keeping or sending naked or sexual images of someone under 18 is a crime, even if the photo is of themselves or of someone who has consented, and even if the image was created by the child and/or using AI generated imagery. Pupils should understand the potentially serious consequences of asking for naked, semi-naked or sexual images, including the potential for criminal charges and severe penalties including imprisonment. **This topic should not be taught before year 7**.

30. Do you agree with this age limit?

- []Yes
- []No

We have placed an age limit on the following content in the secondary Online and Media topic: The impact of viewing harmful content, including pornography, that presents a distorted picture of sexual behaviours, can damage the way people see themselves in relation to others, and can negatively affect how they behave towards sexual partners. This can affect pupils who see pornographic content accidentally as well as those who see it deliberately. **The risks of inappropriate online content can be discussed in an age-appropriate way from year 7, however, the details of sexual acts should not be discussed before year 9.**

31. Do you agree with this age limit?

- []Yes
- []No

We have placed an age limit on the following content in the secondary Being Safe topic: The concepts and laws relating to harmful sexual behaviour, including sexual harassment, revenge porn, upskirting and taking/sharing intimate sexual photographs without consent, public sexual harassment, and unsolicited sexual language / attention / touching. **This should not be taught before year 7.**

32. Do you agree with this age limit?

- []Yes
- []No

We have placed an age limit on the following content in the secondary Being Safe topic: The concepts and laws relating to sexual exploitation, grooming, stalking, and forced marriage. **This should not be taught before year 7.**

33. Do you agree with this age limit?

- []Yes
- []No

We have placed an age limit on the following content in the secondary Being Safe topic: The concept and laws relating to sexual violence, including rape and sexual assault. Whilst it's important for pupils to understand the key principles around sexual offences and violence, for example the importance of understanding what consent means, schools should not teach about this in any sexually explicit way before year 9.

34. Do you agree with this age limit?

- []Yes
- []No

We have placed an age limit on the following content in the secondary Being Safe topic: The physical and emotional damage which can be caused by female genital mutilation (FGM), virginity testing and hymenoplasty, where to find support, and the law around these areas. This should include that it is a criminal offence to perform or assist in the performance of FGM, virginity testing or hymenoplasty, or fail to protect a person under 16 for whom someone is responsible from FGM, or to take girls who are UK nationals abroad for FGM, regardless of whether it is lawful in that country. This should not be taught before year 9, except for where schools have identified a greater risk of FGM at an earlier age or have pupils who have been affected by FGM and need support.

35. Do you agree with this age limit?

- []Yes
- []No

We have placed an age limit on the following content in the secondary Being Safe topic: The concepts and laws relating to domestic abuse including controlling or coercive behaviour, emotional, sexual, economic or physical abuse, and violent or threatening behaviour¹. Schools should not teach about the details of violent abuse before year 9 as it is important that pupils are not introduced to distressing concepts when they are too young to understand them.

36. Do you agree with this age limit?

- []Yes
- []No

37. If you would like to offer any comments about the age restrictions in the secondary Online and Media, Respectful Relationships, including Friendships, and Being Safe topics please do so here. It would be helpful if you could share your own views on appropriate age limits for these topics, for example if you think they are too low or too high.

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

Secondary topic: Intimate and sexual relationships, including sexual health

¹ The <u>Domestic Abuse Act 2021</u> recognised children who see, hear, or experience the effects of abuse, and are related to either the victim of the abusive behaviour, or the perpetrator, as victims of domestic abuse in their own right (part 1 section 3). The <u>Domestic Abuse Act 2021 statutory</u> guidance is designed to support statutory and non-statutory bodies working with victims of domestic abuse, including children.

This topic includes information about choices around sex, including about when and whether to have sex, about sexual consent, reproductive health, strategies for resisting sexual pressure, facts about contraception, facts about pregnancy and choices around pregnancy, facts about STIs and reducing risks of transmission, facts about the impact of alcohol and drugs on sexual behaviour, and information about where to get help. **Explicit discussion of the details of sexual acts should only take place in so far as it is necessary to teach these topics and should not be taught before year 9**

38. Do you agree with the age restriction on the secondary Intimate and sexual relationships, including sexual health topic?

[]Yes []No

39. If you would like to offer any comments about this age restriction, please do so here. It would be helpful if you could share your own views on appropriate age limits for these topics, for example if you think they are too low or too high.

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

Health and wellbeing

We have placed an age limit on the following content in the primary Online Safety and Harms topic within health education: why social media, some apps, computer games and online gaming, including gambling sites, are age restricted. **This should not be taught before year 3.**

40. Do you agree with this age limit?

- []Yes
- []No

We have placed an age limit on the following content in the primary Online Safety and Harms topic within health education: the risks relating to online gaming, video game monetisation, scams, fraud and other financial harms, and that gaming can become addictive. **This should not be taught before year 3.**

41. Do you agree with this age limit?

- []Yes
- []No

We have placed an age restriction on the whole of the primary Developing Bodies topic within health education. **This should not be taught before year 4.**

This covers:

- growth, change and the changing adolescent body, This topic should include the human lifecycle. Puberty should be mentioned as a stage in this process.
- the key facts about the menstrual cycle, including physical and emotional changes.

42. Do you agree with this age limit?

- []Yes
- []No

The secondary Health and Wellbeing topic is now clear that, given the sensitivity and complexity of content on suicide prevention, direct references to suicide should not be made before year 8.

43. Do you agree with this age limit?

- []Yes
- []No

44. If you would like to offer any comments about these age restrictions, please do so here. It would be helpful if you could share your own views on appropriate age limits for these topics, for example if you think they are too low or too high.

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

Health and Wellbeing

We have renamed Physical Health and Mental Wellbeing in the guidance, which now appears as Health and Wellbeing. We have also renamed the primary Mental Wellbeing topic, which now appears as General Wellbeing. We have also added a learning outcome in the primary General Wellbeing topic and the secondary Mental Wellbeing topic, that pupils should understand that worrying and feeling down are normal and affect everyone at different times and are not in themselves a sign of a mental health condition.

45. Do you agree with changes to the Health and Wellbeing section of the guidance?

[]Yes

[] No

46. If you would like to offer any comments to explain your answer, please do so here.

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

Suicide prevention

The 2019 guidance includes many topics relevant to the prevention of suicide. While it does not ask schools to address suicide prevention directly in health education, it says that schools should be aware that children may raise topics including self-harm and suicide and advises teachers to be aware of the risks of encouraging or making suicide seem a more viable option for pupils and avoid material being instructive rather than preventative.

Whilst the suicide rate in under 20s is relatively low compared to older age groups, rates across all age groups under 25 have been increasing over the last decade in England. This includes rates in 10–14-year-olds <u>Suicide prevention strategy for England: 2023 to 2028 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk).</u>

During a Westminster Hall debate on suicide prevention in March 2023, the Minister for Schools agreed to include the area as part of the review of the RSHE statutory guidance. The Department has held a workshop with teachers and two roundtables – one with experts and the voluntary and community sector, and the other with bereaved families - to listen to their opinions and experiences. There was agreement across the groups that suicide prevention should be discussed explicitly at the appropriate age.

The guidance now addresses suicide more explicitly (paragraphs 83-86), explaining that in teaching about mental health and wellbeing within the RSHE curriculum, schools may wish to talk to young people about the prevention of suicide, including how to identify warning signs and where and how to seek help.

The guidance says that if addressing suicide directly, teaching should focus on equipping pupils to recognise when they, or someone they know, needs support and

where they can seek help if they have concerns. This should include details on which adults in school (e.g. school nurses), and externally can help. Teachers should use language and content that is accurate, straightforward and appropriate to the level of understanding of the class. They should take particular care to avoid discussing instructions or methods of self-harm or suicide and avoid using emotive language, videos or images. Given the sensitivity and complexity of content on suicide prevention, direct references to suicide should not be made before Year 8.

47. Do you agree with the proposals on suicide prevention as set out above?

[]Yes []No

48. If you would like to offer any comments to explain your answer, please do so here

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

Additional topics

There are a number of additional areas that we propose adding to the statutory guidance following submissions from other government departments, stakeholders and experts. These include:

- Loneliness
- New content on gambling
- Prevalence of 'deepfakes'
- Antimicrobial resistance
- Healthy behaviours during pregnancy
- Illegal online behaviours including drug and knife supply
- Personal safety, including road, railway and water safety
- Vaping,
- Menstrual and gynaecological health including endometriosis, polycystic ovary syndrome (PCOS), heavy menstrual bleeding
- Parenting and early years brain development
- Virginity testing and hymenoplasty Bereavement

49. Do you agree with this additional content?

- []Yes
- [] No

50. If you have any comments to explain your answer, please do so here

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

General comments

51. Is there anything else in the draft statutory guidance that you would like to comment on?

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.

Public Sector Equality Duty [PSED]

52. Do you have any comments regarding the potential impact of the guidance on those who share a protected characteristic under the Equality Act 2010, whether negative or positive? How could any adverse impact be reduced and are there any other ways we could advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations between those who share a protected characteristic and those who do not?

Please try to limit your response to under 250 words. Please do not add any details which may easily identify you or your organisation.



© Crown copyright 2024

This publication is licensed under the terms of the Open Government Licence v3.0 except where otherwise stated. To view this licence, visit nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3.

Where we have identified any third-party copyright information you will need to obtain permission from the copyright holders concerned.

About this publication:

enquiries <u>www.gov.uk/contact-dfe</u> download <u>www.gov.uk/government/consultations</u>



Follow us on Twitter: @educationgovuk



Like us on Facebook: <u>facebook.com/educationgovuk</u>